
         
 
ADDENDUM #1 
ITB/RFP NUMBER:  2016003-CDBG-P 
Assessment of Fair Housing & 5-Year Consolidated Plan RFP 
 
DATE:  March 21, 2016 
 
TO:  All Potential Bidders/Offerors 
 
City of Harrisonburg’s Assessment of Fair Housing & 5-Year Consolidated Plan RFP, is modified as follows: 
 
1. Question:  The RFP anticipates a 5 Year Consolidated Plan first and then the first Annual Plan second.  How 

will this be managed in terms of the required Public Comment period?  Will there be two such periods or 
will they be combined in the April-May 2017 period? 
 
Answer:  The public comment periods may be combined. 
 

2. What are the required advertising lead times for placement in the media and will the City place those 
announcements/ads? 

 
Answer:  The City will place ads with the local media.  They must be at least seven (7) calendar days prior 
to Public Hearings. 

 
3. Will there be any public hearings for the AFH and for the ConPlan?  If so when are they likely to be held?  

Prior to the comment periods or during them? 
 

Answer:  At least two (2) public hearings will be held during the CDBG Consolidated Plan development 
period and annually after that.  One hearing will be held early in the Plan development process to identify 
the City's community development and housing needs.  The receipt of citizen views on priority non-housing 
community development needs will be sought at this first hearing each year.  Also to be addressed in one (1) 
or both hearings are the range of eligible project types funded through the CDBG program, the amount of 
money available, the proposed activities the City is proposing for funding, and the estimated amount that 
will benefit LMI persons. A second hearing will be held for public review of and comment on the final draft 
of the CDBG Consolidated Plan.  A minimum of thirty (30) days will be available to receive citizen 
comments about the Plan.  The City will consider all comments received and attach a summary of them to 
the final Plan, including the views not accepted and reasons why they were not.  
 
These hearings will be held after adequate notice (newspaper advertisement at least seven days prior to the 
hearing and at least one (1) other type of announcement - see # 1 above), at times and locations convenient 
to potential or actual beneficiaries, and with accommodation for the physically challenged.  Both public 
hearings will be held within eight (8) months of the Plan deadline of May 15.  The two (2) hearings will, at a 
minimum, be held one (1) week apart.  Files will be maintained containing documentary evidence that the 
hearings were held.  
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In the case of substantial amendments to the Consolidated Plan (where activities are to be added, deleted, or 
substantially changed in terms of purpose, scope, location, or beneficiaries), the City will provide its citizens 
with an opportunity for comment on such changes through a public hearing, after the City has informed 
citizens of the changes at least seven days prior to the hearing.  A minimum of thirty (30) calendar days will 
be available to receive citizen comments about any substantial amendments to the Plan, and a summary of 
these comments will be included (including views not accepted and the reasons why they were not accepted) 
in the amended Plan.  
 
Under the new AFFH rule, a grantee’s citizen participation plan will need to be amended prior to the 
initiation of the AFH process to comply with the new provisions at § 91.105 for local governments and § 
91.115 for states.  The attached March 14, 2016 memorandum from HUD Principal Deputy Assistant 
Secretary for Community Planning & Development Harriet Tregoning outlines the revisions and additions 
to the consolidated plan process, the consultation process and the citizen participation plan requirements for 
both local government and states.  The City of Harrisonburg will be amending its public participation plan 
in accordance with this rule as it related to the AFH. 

 
4. Does the City Council have to approve the AFH and the ConPlan and the Annual Plan?  If so, when would 

those approval dates be and how far in advance of such meetings will the documents need to be available for 
distribution to the Council? 

 
Answer:  Yes, City Council does need to approve these documents for the City.  City council meetings are 
on the 2nd  and 4th Tuesday evenings of each month.  The information for these meetings must be 
completed two (2) weeks prior to each meeting.  Annual City Council dates can be found on the City’s 
website:  http://www.harrisonburgva.gov/city-council-meeting.  
 
For the Harrisonburg Redevelopment and Housing Authority, the HRHA’s Board of Commissioner will 
need to approve the documents.  The Board meets the third Wednesday of each month at 4:00pm at the 
Authority’s administrative office.  Items for the meeting need to be provided ten (10) business days prior to 
the meeting date. 

 
5. Some of the data not supplied by HUD for the AFH or for the Consolidated Plan will be appropriate for both 

the AFH and the ConPlan.  If such data is collected and analyzed for the AFH much of it can be used for the 
ConPlan as well.  Will there be a problem in using such data and analysis (which will likely be collected by 
June 2016) for the ConPlan which will be about 6 months later? 

 
Answer:  As long as this data is still relevant, there will be no problem. 

 
6. Are there any State of Virginia “protected classes" in addition to the Federal ones?  If so can we secure a 

copy or list of them? 
 
Answer:  Hopefully the consultant hired for this work will be able to answer this question. 
 

7. How does the City intend to work with the regional jurisdiction of Rockingham County and its 
Comprehensive Plan being developed at this time? 
 
Answer:  This is not a regional entitlement. 
 

8. How does the City intend to work with the Cities and Towns within that region? 
 

Answer:  This is not a regional entitlement. 
 
9. Does the City have its own Master Plan and if so, will it be revised during the period of this engagement? 
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Answer:  The City has a Comprehensive Plan available on its website at 
http://www.harrisonburgva.gov/comprehensive-plan .  This plan is due to be revised this year.  It is 
anticipated that the plan will be under revision beginning in May 2016.  This process is expected to last 
approximately 1.5 years. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All other requirements, terms and conditions of the ITB/RFP remain unchanged.  
 
Addendum page must be signed and returned with your bid/proposal to acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 
 
 
By:  Pat Hilliard, CPPB 
        Procurement Manager 
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